Minutes

MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE



5 January 2016

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present:	
	Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman) Ian Edwards (Vice-Chairman)	
	Peter Curling	
	Jazz Dhillon	
	Janet Duncan (Labour Lead)	
	Carol Melvin	
	John Morgan Brian Stead	
	Brian Stead	
	LBH Officers Present:	
	James Rodger, Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture	
19.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)	
19.	AFOLOGILS FOR ABSLINGE (Agenda Rein 1)	
	Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Yarrow,	
	with Councillor Raymond Graham acting as substitute.	
20	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING REFORE	
20.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)	
	The MEETING (Agenda Rem 2)	
	None.	
21.	TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS 28 OCTOBER 2015 AND 18 NOVEMBER 2015	
	(Agenda Item 3)	
	(rigerial item o)	
	Were agreed as an accurate record.	
22.	MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR	
	URGENT (Agenda Item 4)	
	None.	
23.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE	
	CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)	
	WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda item 5)	
	All items were considered in public.	
24.	511 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES 15988/APP/2014/4271 (Agenda Item 6)	
	511 Uxbridge Road Hayes - 15988/APP/2014/4271	

Demolition of existing 4-bedroom house and erection of 2, three storey blocks comprising 10 two-bedroom flats, with associated access, parking and amenity space.

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the changes set out in the addendum.

In accordance with the Council's constitution, the petitioner in objection to the proposal addressed the Committee.

The petitioner raised the following points:

- The proposal was an overdevelopment of the site with too many flats in a small area.
- The style and design of the proposal meant that it would be out of character with the area.
- The proposal would block light to No. 513 which only received light to the side and rear.
- If approved, the development would be far too close to properties in Elmlea Drive and 3 storey height would be intrusive and invasive to No. 513 Uxbridge Road.
- The proposal would result in overlooking to 513 and 515.
- The flats on the top floor of the proposal would result in significant overlooking to properties in Elmlea Drive which would require curtains to be drawn at all times to maintain privacy.
- Should the proposal be approved, local residents would be affected by increased pollution from extra cars, dirt and dust generation from construction and added traffic congestion.
- The proposal would result in increased traffic on a stretch of road which was already renowned as an accident hotspot.
- Current parking provision would be severely affected and access and egress for emergency and service vehicles would be inadequate.
- There were inaccuracies in the application form which had been submitted as this stated there were no trees on and adjacent to the site.
- The proposal would result in increased pressures to local services including schools, doctors and hospitals.

The agent / applicant did not address the Committee.

A Ward Councillors attended the meeting and the following points were raised:

- Objections had been made in the past regarding George's Court because of the traffic issues.
- Officers had provided previous assurances that the traffic issues would be addressed but these remained unresolved.
- It was significant that the scheme lacked a social housing element.
- The Ward Councillor supported the Officer recommendation for refusal.

During the course of discussions the Committee raised a number of

points which included access / egress, building lines and right to light issues. In response, Officers confirmed there was access at the rear of the property for emergency and service vehicles. With regards to the 45 degree building line, Officers confirmed this was compliant due to the staggered building line of the proposal site.

A further question concerned windows to bedrooms at the far side of the development where there appeared to be no windows to habitable rooms. Despite referring to the plans, Officers were unable to provide definitive advice at the meeting and so the decision was taken for the Planning Department to check this requirement and report back to the Chairman and Labour Lead.

Summarising the application, the Committee felt the proposal was an inappropriate form of development which would not harmonise with the area. A number of trees would be affected and there was insufficient landscaping provision to mitigate the effects. Furthermore, the scheme did not include bicycle storage or any provision for affordable housing.

It was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote agreed unanimously that the application be refused for the reasons set out in the officer report and addendum.

RESOLVED - Powers delegated to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to investigate the following issues with a view to refusal of planning permission subject to:

- Deletion of reason for refusal 7 (Accessible and adaptable wheelchair units) as per addendum report
- Split reason for refusal 3 into 2 separate conditions, the first relating to Layout and second reason relating to refuse and recycling/cycle parking/vehicle charging.
- If units in Block 2 receive inadequate levels of light add a further reason for refusal on this matter.

25. WATERLOO WHARF WATERLOO ROAD UXBRIDGE 43016/APP/2014/4486 (Agenda Item 7)

Waterloo Wharf Waterloo Road Uxbridge - 43016/APP/2014/4486 Planning permission was sought on the erection of 2 blocks containing 52 one, two and three bedroom apartments, together with associated parking access and landscaping, involving the demolition of existing buildings.

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the changes set out in the addendum.

In accordance with the Council's constitution, the petitioner in objection to the proposal addressed the Committee.

The petitioner raised the following points:

 The height of the proposed new development blocks were much taller and imposing than the existing 'shed' type building that the Action by

development would replace.

- There was concern about the impact of noise at all hours and pollution from the cars that would be parking. There was also concern about the impact of any lighting planned for the car park area.
- The bin stores would be situated in the car park at the rear properties which could encourage vermin and unpleasant smells.
- Parking is already a challenge for local residents; the planned development would include 52 flats with only 37 car parking and no visitor parking.
- The access to the planned development would be newly created and would be very close to the bend at the top of Waterloo Road. The entrance to Waterloo Road (from Rockingham Road) already got very busy and congested, especially during 'peak hours'. The additional traffic generated from the development would only add to the congestion.
- The building height together with the colour of the brick would mean it stands out like an eyesore.
- The entrance to 'Waterloo Wharf' would be newly created and would be very close to the bend at the top travelling from Frays Waye onto Waterloo Road which was already dangerous due the fast speed and amount of cars. With additional cars using the area to access the new development would make it very dangerous.
- We would lose some of the older buildings of the area and would be losing our local heritage.
- If the current occupiers Goldbergs definitely do not want to occupy the premises then the council could use the buildings to provide amenities for the local area.
- There has been a number of new builds in the area over the last couple of years and the local amenities and infrastructure were already under strain.

The agent raised the following points:

- That the development would enhance the local area.
- That all the flats in the development were to exceed the standards of light.
- He was surprised that there would be a loss of employment as he stated that Officers had not mentioned this before.
- He did not think that noise was an issue as the scheme was next to a boat yard.
- In conclusion he thought that this was sustainable development, which would enhance the area and would provide safer vehicle access.

A ward Councillor attended the meeting and the following points were raised: The wharf was an asset to the area and part of old Uxbridge. • The ward Councillor offered her support to residents. **RESOLVED - Resolution: Powers delegated to the Head of** Planning and Enforcement with a view to refusal of planning permission subject to: Amend refusal reason 1 as per Addendum report Amend refusal reason 3 as per Addendum report Insert additional informative as per Addendum report Include additional reason for refusal relating to inadequate on-site car parking If all of the units within Block B do not have windows and receive adequate levels of light, officers should add this as a refusal reason. MATERIAL STORE, THE OLD VINYL FACTORY BLYTH ROAD 26. Action by HAYES 59872/APP/2015/3991 (Agenda Item 8) Material Store, the Old Vinyl Factory Blyth Road Hayes 59872/APP/2015/3991 Approval of reserved matters relating to the appearance and the landscaping of Phase 2 of The Old Vinyl Factory Masterplan: The Material Store as required by Conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission ref. 59872/APP/2013/3775. Officers reminded Members that they had approved this application before. Officers did not object to the application on design of conservation grounds. RESOLVED - That the application be approved as per Officer recommendation.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Kiran Grover on 01895 250693. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.00 pm.